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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

CASE NO. -----------18 u.s.c. § 1343 
18 u.s.c. § 1957 
18 u.s.c. § 2 
18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(l)(C) 
18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(l) 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

vs. 

ALFRED DA VIS, 

Defendant. 
I ------------

INDICTMENT 

The Grand Jury charges that: 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

At all times relevant to this Indictment: 

1. ALFRED DA VIS was the owner of the property located at 20031 NW 12th Court, 

Miami, Florida (the "property"). 

2. U.S . Bank was a financial institution with branches located in the Southern District 

of Florida, and elsewhere. 

3. Amerant Bank was a financial institution with branches located in the Southern 

District of Florida. 

4. Figure Lending LLC was a financial services company headquartered in Charlotte, 

North Carolina. 

5. Lower LLC was a financial services company headquartered in New Albany, Ohio. 

���DS�������#FDFSSB�5PSSFT

TM

Oct 15, 2024

WPB
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COUNTS 1-3 
Wire Fraud 

(18 u.s.c. §1343) 

, . 

1. The General Allegations section of this Indictment is realleged and incorporated by 

reference as though fully set forth herein. 

2. From on or about June 6, 2023 , to on or about May 20, 2024, in Miami-Dade 

County, in the Southern District of Florida, the defendant, 

ALFRED DAVIS, 

did knowingly, and with the intent to defraud, devise, and intend to devise, a scheme and artifice 

to defraud, and to obtain money and property by means of materially false and fraudulent 

pretenses, representations, and promises, knowing that the pretenses, representations, and 

promises were false and fraudulent when made, and, for the purpose of executing the scheme and 

artifice, did knowingly transmit and cause to be transmitted, by means of wire communications in 

interstate commerce, certain writings, signs, signals, pictures, and sounds, in violation of Title 18, 

United States Code, Section 1343. 

PURPOSE OF THE SCHEME AND ARTIFICE 

3. It was the purpose of the scheme and artifice for the defendant, ALFRED DAVIS, 

to unlawfully enrich himself by applying for and obtaining Home Equity Lines of Credit 

("HELOCs") by means of false and fraudulent representations and withdrawing and using the 

proceeds for his own use and benefit and the use and benefit of others. 

MANNER AND MEANS OF THE SCHEME AND ARTIFICE 

The manner and means by which the defendant, ALFRED DA VIS, sought to accomplish 

the purpose of the scheme and artifice included, among other things, the following: 

4. On June 6, 2023 , ALFRED DA VIS submitted a HELOC application to U.S. Bank, 

in support of which DA VIS included false and fraudulent tax returns. 

-2-
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5. On June 30, 2023 , ALFRED DAVIS submitted a HELOC application to Lower 

LLC. 

6. On July 8, 2023, ALFRED DA VIS submitted a HELOC application to Figure 

Lending LLC. 

7. On July 11 , 2023 , ALFRED DAVIS falsely and fraudulently represented to Figure 

Lending LLC that the property was free and clear of legal encumbrances, mortgages, and liens. 

8. On July 26, 2023, ALFRED DAVIS falsely and fraudulently represented to Lower 

LLC that the property had no prior mortgages and that DA VIS had not been issued credit by Figure 

Lending LLC. 

USE OF THE WIRES 

9. On or about the dates specified as to each count below, in the Southern District of 

Florida, the defendant, ALFRED DA VIS, for the purpose of executing and in furtherance of the 

aforesaid scheme and artifice to defraud, and to obtain money and property by means of materially 

false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, knowing that the pretenses, 

representations, and promises were false or fraudulent when made, did knowingly transmit and 

cause to be transmitted in interstate and foreign commerce, by means of wire communications, 

certain writings, signs, signals, pictures, and sounds, as particularly described below: 

-3-
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Count Approximate Date Description of Wire 

1 

2 

3 

June 6, 2023 The submission to U.S. Bank of an application for a HELOC 
in the approximate amount of $350,000. 

June 30, 2023 The submission to Lower LLC of an application for a HELOC 
in the approximate amount of $350,000. 

The submission of a free and clear letter to Figure Lending 
July 11 , 2023 LLC in support of an application for a HELOC in the 

approximate amount of $400,000. 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 2. 

COUNTS 4-5 
Engaging in Transactions in Criminally Derived Property 

(18 u.s.c. §1957) 

1. The General Allegations section of this Indictment is realleged and incorporated by 

reference as though fully set forth herein. 

2. On or about the dates specified below, in Miami-Dade County, in the Southern 

District of Florida, the defendant, 

ALFRED DA VIS, 

did knowingly engage in, and attempt to engage in, a monetary transaction affecting interstate 

commerce, by, through, and to a financial institution, in criminally derived property of a value 

greater than $10,000, such property having been derived from a specified unlawful activity, and 

knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction represented the proceeds of some 

form of unlawful activity, as described below: 

Count Approximate Date Description of Transaction 

The purchase of a cashier' s check, payable to Boss Group 
4 July 25 , 2023 Ministries, in the approximate amount of $35 ,000, from an 

account ending in 0406 at Amerant Bank. 

The purchase of a cashier' s check, payable to ALFRED 
5 August 1, 2023 DA VIS, in the approximate amount of $50,000, from an 

account ending in 0406 at Amerant Bank. 

-4-
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It is further alleged that the specified unlawful activity is wire fraud, in violation of Title 

18, United States Code, Section 1343. 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1957 and 2. 

FORFEITURE ALLEGATIONS 

1. The allegations of this Indictment are hereby re-alleged and by this reference fully 

incorporated herein for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to the United States of America of certain 

property in which the defendant, ALFRED DA VIS, has an interest. 

2. Upon conviction of a violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343, as 

alleged in this Indictment, the defendant shall forfeit to the United States any property constituting, 

or derived from, proceeds the person obtained directly or indirectly, as the result of such violation, 

pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 981(a)(l)(C). 

3. Upon conviction of a violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1957, as 

alleged in this Indictment, the defendant shall forfeit to the United States any property, real or 

personal, involved in such offense, and any property traceable to such property, pursuant to Title 

18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(l). 

-5-
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All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 98l(a)(l)(C) and 982(a)(l), and the 

procedures set forth in Title 21 , United States Code, Section 853 , as incorporated by Title 18, 

United States Code, Section 982(b)(l). 

MA ~ APOINTE ITEDS : ESATTORNEY 

ANBAILYN 
NT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

-6-
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●

LaPointe, Markenzy - Page 1

Nominee Report | U.S. Office of Government Ethics; 5 C.F.R. part 2634 | Form Approved: OMB No. (3209-0001) (Updated Nov. 2021)

Executive Branch Personnel
Public Financial Disclosure Report (OGE Form 278e)

Filer's Information
LaPointe, Markenzy

United States Attorney, Southern District of Florida, Department of Justice - Executive Office for United States Attorneys

Other Federal Government Positions Held During the Preceding 12 Months:
None

Names of Congressional Committees Considering Nomination:
Committee on the Judiciary

Electronic Signature - I certify that the statements I have made in this form are true, complete and correct to the best of my knowledge.

/s/ LaPointe, Markenzy [electronically signed on 06/30/2022 by LaPointe, Markenzy in Integrity.gov] 

Agency Ethics Official's Opinion - On the basis of information contained in this report, I conclude that the filer is in compliance with applicable laws and regulations (subject to
any comments below).
/s/ Gary, Arthur E, Certifying Official [electronically signed on 09/22/2022 by Gary, Arthur E in Integrity.gov]

Other review conducted by
/s/ Macklin, Jay, Ethics Official [electronically signed on 09/19/2022 by Macklin, Jay in Integrity.gov]

EXH.1
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LaPointe, Markenzy - Page 4

3. Filer's Employment Agreements and Arrangements

# DESCRIPTION EIF VALUE INCOME TYPE INCOME
AMOUNT

2.1 FID GOVT MMKT K6  (FNBXX) Yes $250,001 -
$500,000

None (or less
than $201)

3 Markenzy Lapointe, P.A. - Miami, Florida No

3.1 Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP N/A Partnership
income

$905,176

3.2 Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP, capital
account

N/A $15,001 -
$50,000

None (or less
than $201)

3.3 U.S. bank (cash) N/A $250,001 -
$500,000

None (or less
than $201)

3.4 Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP
Anticipated Partnership Share

N/A $50,001 -
$100,000

None (or less
than $201)

3.5 Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP
Anticipated Discretionary Bonus

N/A $50,001 -
$100,000

None (or less
than $201)

# EMPLOYER OR PARTY CITY, STATE STATUS AND TERMS DATE

1 Markenzy Lapointe, P.A. Miami, Florida Upon receiving the final payment from the firm,
Markenzy Lapointe, P.A., my Professional Association
(P.A.) will be inactive.

8/2017

2 Boies Schiller Flexner LLP Miami, Florida I will continue to participate in this defined contribution
plan. The plan sponsor ceased making contributions
upon my separation.

7/2006

3 Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP Miami, Texas I will continue to participate in this defined contribution
plan. The plan sponsor will not make further
contributions after my separation.

8/2017

4 Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP Miami, Florida I will be eligible to receive a bonus at the discretion of
the firm management committee, if I am still employed
by the firm at the time it is awarded and paid. If I am
awarded a bonus, I will receive it by April of 2023.

8/2017
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LaPointe, Markenzy - Page 8

7. Transactions

(N/A) - Not required for this type of report

8. Liabilities

9. Gifts and Travel Reimbursements

(N/A) - Not required for this type of report

# DESCRIPTION EIF VALUE INCOME TYPE INCOME
AMOUNT

11 U.S. bank (cash) #1 N/A $1,001 - $15,000 None (or less
than $201)

12 U.S. bank (cash) #2 N/A $50,001 -
$100,000

None (or less
than $201)

13 Brokerage Account No

13.1 Innerscope Hearing Technologies Inc N/A $1,001 - $15,000 None (or less
than $201)

# CREDITOR NAME TYPE AMOUNT YEAR
INCURRED

RATE TERM

1 Wells Fargo Bank Mortgage on
Personal
Residence

$500,001 -
$1,000,000

2021 2.875 30 yrs

2 Wells Fargo Bank Mortgage on
Personal
Residence

$500,001 -
$1,000,000

2018 4.125% 30 yrs

<

<--- from US BANK

<--- from US BANK
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

 

 
              
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
Plaintiff 
 

         CASE NO: 24-CR-20456-JB 

v. 
 
ALFRED DAVIS 

Defendants, 
 
 

 
 

MOTION AND AFFIDAVIT FOR RELIEF, RECUSAL, VACATION OF ORDERS AND 
MEMORANDUM OF LAW 

 
 

Pursuant to Florida Stat. 112.131, Florida Rule 2.160 (H) and Federal Rules of Civil Procedure Rule 60, 

Defendant Alfred Davis hereby files this  Motion  for  Relief  &  Recusal  and  Supporting  Memorandum  

regarding  the  Nov.7th, 2024Judge Jaqueline Baccarra review of  the record and Final Judgement Order, Exhibit.J. 

based on the following facts, new information, just terms, judicial misconduct, fraudulent grounds and 

discovered conflict of personal investment interests on Financial Disclosures of Judges and officers of this 

Court (Exhibits # B)   Attached-U.S. BANK Special Situation Property Funds  Account Page 42, IFRS 2018 

Tables 9-13, SEC Filings- U.S. BANK Florida Subsidiaries, Judge Jaqueline Baccarra Financial Interests & 

Property Disclosures).  

 

Florida Rule 2.160 (H) Says A Judge may Vacate his orders for Conflict of Interest Theodore R. Bundy V. 

Judge John A. Rudd Fl. Rule 2.160 (D) (1) Fl. Code Jud. Conduct , Canon 3E(1) A Judge shall disqualify 

himself where impartiality might reasonably be questioned Rule 2.160 (D) (1) grounds to disqualify is 

party fears Judge is Biased Fl. Statue 112.312 (8) Judge can’t have a conflict of Interest ! 

 

Judge Jaqueline Baccarra must Recuse herself for an open obvious Conflict of Interest because he’s 

doing business with Bank of America and helping them to make money so that she can make money 

by foreclosing and taking (stealing) our property while acting as the Judge on the case on our property, 

not on case’s Merits but for to make him and them money Illegally. Here’s proof. 
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Comes now Alfred Davis acting Pro-Se here states Judge Jaqueline Baccarra, says that Bank Of America on 

her form 6 Full and Public Disclosure Of Financial Interests is a Bank doing Business with US Bank because 

she's doing business with US BANK and helping them to make money so that she can make money by 

foreclosing and taking our property while acting as the Judge to take the property not on his Merits but for 

to make him and them money Illegally.  Here's proof that , Judge Jaqueline Baccarra is doing business with 

Bank of America as seen in his FORM 6 page 4 lines 2  in the amount of $100,000 EXh.A Which is US Bancorp 

Exh. B pg.1 and pg.2 because both banks have Shares with Ally Financial according to Fintel’s stock chart. 

She also has a Conflict of Interest with American Express which is U.S. Bank in the amount of $50,000 on line 

10,. Which is a major Conflict of Interest. Who he has ruled in favor of, EXH. F. That is a Conflict of Interest 

against us and there's more. I have found that our case was directed to her in this Pool, So she must recuse 

herself and vacate his Order, Exhibit, G. So Judge Jaqueline Baccarra you must Recuse YOUR SELF and 

VACATE YOUR ORDER against us, EXH. I.  

 

 
FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

 

l . On Nov.7th, 2024, Defendant  Judge Jaqueline Baccarra issued  a final  Judgment  order  Exh. A  against 

Defendant Alfred Davis for amounts due and owing on same mortgage that was dismissed with 

Prejudice in former case no: 07-12407CA01 where DEUTSCHE BANK could never produce the 

promissory Note though they were asked by the Judge several times but never did bring it 

forth, Exhibit. I. A judge cannot change another Judge’s ORDER! And also on March 26th, 2019, Judge 

Jaqueline Baccarra issued a Judgment order acting  as a quasi-defense attorney for DEUTSCHE 

BANK his personal investment Partner to make money together. Plaintiff JAMES BUCKMAN has 

now subsequently provided the United States Department of Justice (DOJ) on specific newly 

discovered whistle blower information and records regarding millions of dollars in exposed 

fraudulent foreclosure claims made by the Defendants DEUTSCHE BANK, Clerks and Court 

officers in this action. Exhibit, O. 

 

 

MEMORANDUM  OF LAW 
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FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE REPORT
Page 4 of 6

Name of Person Reporting

Becerra, Jacqueline

Date of Report

02/15/2024

VII. INVESTMENTS and TRUSTS -- income, value, transactions (Includes those of spouse and dependent children; see Guide to Judiciary Policy, Volume

2D, Ch. 3, § 310 Reporting Thresholds for Assets; § 312 Types of Reportable Property; § 315 Interests in Property; § 320 Income; § 325 Purchases, Sales, and Exchanges; § 360 Spouses

and Dependent Children; § 365 Trusts, Estates, and Investment Funds.)

NONE (No reportable income, assets, or transactions.)
A.

Description of Assets
(including trust assets)

Place "(X)" after each asset
exempt from prior disclosure

B.
Income during

reporting period

(1)
Amount
Code 1
(A-H)

(2)
Type (e.g.,
div., rent,

or int.)

C.
Gross value at end
of reporting period

(1)
Value
Code 2
(J-P)

(2)
Value

Method
Code 3
(Q-W)

D.
Transactions during reporting period

 

(1)
Type (e.g.,
buy, sell,

redemption)

(2)
Date

mm/dd/yy

(3)
Value
Code 2
(J-P)

(4)
Gain

Code 1
(A-H)

1. Income Gain Codes:
(See Columns B1 and D4)

2. Value Codes
(See Columns C1 and D3)

3. Value Method Codes
(See Column C2)

A =$1,000 or less
F =$50,001 - $100,000
J =$15,000 or less
N =$250,001 - $500,000
P3 =$25,000,001 - $50,000,000
Q =Appraisal
U =Book Value

B =$1,001 - $2,500
G =$100,001 - $1,000,000
K =$15,001 - $50,000
O =$500,001 - $1,000,000

R =Cost (Real Estate Only)
V =Other

C =$2,501 - $5,000
H1 =$1,000,001 - $5,000,000
L =$50,001 - $100,000
P1 =$1,000,001 - $5,000,000
P4 =More than $50,000,000
S =Assessment
W =Estimated

D =$5,001 - $15,000
H2 =More than $5,000,000
M =$100,001 - $250,000
P2 =$5,000,001 - $25,000,000

T =Cash Market

E =$15,001 - $50,000

1. Individual Assets (H)

2. Bank of America (cash) A Interest L T

3. Account #1 (H)

4. Brighthouse 6 Year Shield 15 S&P 500
Index Level Annuity (fixed)

None N T

5. Brighthouse 6 Year Shield 25 S&P 500
Index Level Annuity (fixed)

None N T

6. Account #2 (H)

7. American Funds - The Income Fund of
America 529A (CIMAX)

A Dividend J T

8. American Funds - The Income Fund of
America 529F2 (FAIFX)

C Dividend L T

9. Account #3 (H)

10. American Funds - The Income Fund of
America-A (AMECX)

B Dividend K T

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.
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